
 
 
 
 

 LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 

 
 

Our Ref: 
 
 

  
Contact: 

 
Charles Yankiah 

      

    Tel: 0151 330 1079 
      

    Date: 2 January 2019 
 

 
To: All Members of the Transport Committee  

Councillors L Robinson (Chair), G Friel 
(Deputy Chair), R Abbey, D Baum, 
A Carr, J Dodd, S Foulkes, P Hayes, 
H Howard, J Jackson, D Johnson, 
A Lavelle, P McKinley, N Nicholas, 
M O'Mara OBE, G Pearl, G Philbin, 
K Roberts, J Stockton, S Murphy, 
C Rowe, H Thompson, J Williams and 
F Wynn 

  
 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
You are requested to attend a meeting of the Transport Committee to be held on 
Thursday, 10 January 2019 at 2.00 pm in the Authority Chamber, Merseytravel 
Offices, No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is attached. 
 
Should Members need to declare an interest in any items included on the agenda, 
forms are obtainable from the Democratic Services Team or in the meeting. 
 
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Paid Service 
 
 
Enc. 



 

 

Transport Committee 
 

10 January 2019 
 

Agenda 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   
 

2.   Declarations of Interest   
 

3.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  1 – 10 
 

4.   Developing a Mayoral Transport Plan  11 - 16 

 To consider a report of the Director of Policy and Strategic 
Commissioning concerning the Mayoral Transport Plan.  
 

 

5.   Merseyside Road Safety Partnership and Liverpool City 
Region Road Safety Strategy 2017-20  

17 - 22 

 To consider a report of Merseytravel concerning the 
Merseyside Road Safety Partnership and Liverpool City 
Region Road Safety Strategy 2017-20. 
 

 

6.   Liverpool City Region Smart Ticketing Programme 
Update  

23 - 26 

 To consider a report of Merseytravel providing an update on 
progress with the Smart Ticketing Programme. 
 

 

7.   Williams Rail Review  27 - 30 

 To consider a report of the Head of Rail advising that 
proposed responses to the review are being collated. 
 

 

8.   Public Question Time   

 Members of the public will be given the opportunity to ask 
questions which have been submitted in accordance with 
Meetings Standing Orders No. 11.  
 
A period of 30 minutes will be allocated for this item and 
copies of valid questions will be circulated at the meeting. 
 
Members of the public who wish to submit questions are 
asked to contact Democratic Services by either: 
 
Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk 
 

 

mailto:democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk


 

Telephone: 0151 330 1086 
 
In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, No.1 Mann 
Island, PO Box 1976, Liverpool, L69 3HN 
 
A pro-forma will be supplied which, for this meeting must be 
returned by 5.00pm on Monday 7th January 2019. In this 
respect, return details are set out in the pro-forma. 
 

9.   Petitions and Statements   

 Members of the public will be given the opportunity to submit 
a single petition or statement in accordance with Meetings 
Standing Orders No. 11. 
 
Members of the Public who wish to submit a single petition 
or statement are asked to contact Democratic Services by 
either: 
 
Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk 
 
Telephone: 0151 330 1086 
 
In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, No.1 Mann 
Island, PO Box 1976, Liverpool, L69 3HN 
 
All petitions and statements for this meeting should be 
submitted to Merseytravel, using the contact details above, 
by 5.00pm on Monday 7th January 2019.  

 

 

10.   Any Other Urgent Business Approved by the Chair   
 
 
 
 

mailto:democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 
Transport Committee 

 
13 December 2018 

 
 

Present: Councillor L Robinson, Chair 
Councillor G Friel, Deputy Chair 
 

 Councillors R Abbey, D Baum, S Foulkes, H Howard, 
J Jackson, P McKinley, N Nicholas, M O'Mara OBE, 
G Pearl, G Philbin, K Roberts, J Stockton, C Rowe, 
H Thompson, J Williams and F Wynn  
 

   

 
 

64. Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors John Dodd, Paul 
Hayes, Susan Murphy and Anthony Lavelle. 

__________ 
 

The Chair informed the Committee that Councillor Norman Keats had 
stepped down from the Transport Committee with immediate effect and on 
behalf of the Committee thanked him for his attendance, commitment and 

support to the Transport Committee. 
 

The Chair also informed the Committee that Councillor Dot Johnson had 
been nominated to take Councillor Keats place on the Committee and subject 

to the approval of the Combined Authority would join the Committee at its 
next meeting on 10 January 2019. 

 
__________ 

 
 

65. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Steve Foulkes declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 9 – 
Petitions and Statements by virtue of being one of the petitioners. 
 
 

66. Minutes of the Last Meeting  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the last meeting of the Transport Committee 
held on 1 November 2018, be approved as a correct record. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

67. Presentation - Merseyrail Update  
 
The Committee received a presentation from Mr Andy Heath, Managing 
Director of Merseyrail. 
 
The presentation focussed on the following: - 
 

 Delivering for passengers since 2003; 

 Award winning network; 

 New State of the Art Trains; 

 Journey Times; 

 Rolling Stock Design; 

 Operational Readiness; 

 Platform Upgrade Work; 

 Industrial Relations; 

 Future Ticketing; 

 Local Communities; 

 Rail Industry Challenges; and 

 The Williams Review. 
 
Members thanked Merseyrail for a number of recent successes including the 
Giants weekend and the work done on the Wirral Slab-tracks and Liverpool 
Lime Street and also expressed their appreciation for the staff at Merseyrail 
for dealing with the passengers during the difficult period and all the recent 
changes. 
 
Members enquired about the upgrade to the platforms and the possibility of 
increasing the number of short-forms during peak hours with the pending 
new trains and if anything could be done to reduce the single and return fares 
across the network. 
 
Andy Heath informed the meeting that there were a number of challenges 
with the current fleet and getting the remaining trains through the Train 
Reliability Improvement Programme (TRIP) to increase and improve 
reliability, mainly due to the age of the trains. Merseyrail had collaborated 
with Stadler to introduce the TRIP programme in order to improve reliability. 
He also stated that the network had the cheapest rail-fares in the country and 
discussions were taking place nationally about fares and fare structures 
including the single and zonal fares. 
 
Members discussed the reduction in fares for young people and ensuring rail 
tickets be reduced in the New Year for up to 19 year olds and enquired about 
how “fare evasion” was being tackled. 
 
Sarah Sperring, Head of Marketing for Merseyrail informed the Committee 
that there had been an increase in under 18s using the network and with the 
introduction of the identification scheme to improve usage. She also stated 

Page 2



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

that the network was looking at reducing the paper tickets in the future and 
that a scheme would be introduced in 2019 for the 16-26 age range. 
 
Andy Heath commented that a survey had recently been commissioned 
involving 40,000 passengers which highlighted that 4% of passengers 
already use ticketless travel that contributes to the perception that 
passengers are evading fares. However, staff have been instructed across all 
the stations to keep the gates closed and to check tickets. He assured the 
Committee that lots of processes were in place to manage gates and tickets, 
but there were particular challenges in certain stations e.g. Central Station in 
the City Centre. 
 
Members enquired about smart and ticketless ticketing and the focus of 
Merseyrail relating to tickets in the future and if any improvements were 
being made for the autumn and winter to keep the lines cleared. 
 
Andy Heath informed the Committee that moving to smart ticketing would be 
expensive and challenging, not just for Merseyrail, but the entire network rail 
and that moving to ticketless would be done in two phases in 2020 and 2022 
with a commitment and more collaborative approach with Transport for the 
North and Merseytravel. He also commented that Merseyrail had a multi-
purpose vehicle that works for 12 weeks between October and December 
normally once a day jet washing rail heads and applying a modifier. Trains 
were also fitted with sanders and sand boxes which were checked regularly 
to ensure the lines were clear and the sand boxes were filled. 
 
Members enquired about trains for the future relating to the environment and 
the climate and bidding processes for hydrogen and whether Merseyrail were 
prepared for any flooding on the lines as a result of heavy rainfall. 
 
Andy Heath informed the Committee that the new trains would have 
regenerative breaking which would reduce carbon footprint and that 
Merseyrail had an environmental code that all staff adhered too. He further 
stated that station lighting would be replaced with LED lighting which would 
be funded by Network Rail and there were a number of other initiatives that 
Merseyrail were involved in which would be shared with the Committee. He 
also stated that there was already good drainage on the network and officers 
were aware of areas that were likely to flood with heavy rainfall. 
 
The Chair enquired about proper bus and train integration and the views of 
Merseyrail relating to franchising and the different models for bus operators 
in the City Region. 
 
Andy Heath informed the Committee that “door to door” journeys were a 
challenge with trying to integrate the transport system across the region and 
planning journeys. The trains were mainly on time, but it was a challenge for 
the bus network to be integrated into the rail network given all the logistical 
issues, but discussions were being held. He commented that he welcomed 

Page 3



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

any ideas to improve the transport links and integration across the region and 
that franchising was a good idea. 
 
The Chair enquired about the festive period and late night services and 
whether it was being looked at to be implemented again in the future. 
 
Andy Heath stated that the Boxing Day services from a commercial 
perspective was not profitable, but recognised the value to the City Region 
and that it was being looked at for the future, but would not be repeated this 
year due to works. He also stated that late night trains were a bit more 
difficult and had more issues to deal with including the risk to the travelling 
public and possibly one boarding point and regulating who got on the train or 
not, but again it was not commercially profitable. 
 
The Committee noted the presentation and thanked Andy Heath and Sarah 
Sperring for attending the meeting and wished Merseyrail and its staff a 
Merry Christmas. 
 
 

68. Quarter 2 Merseytravel Financial Monitoring and Corporate Plan 
Performance Report 2018/19  
 
The Committee considered a report from Mick Noone (Director of Integrated 
Transport) and Sarah Johnston (Head of Finance) in relation to an overview 
of financial corporate and operational performance of Merseytravel for Q2 
(July to September) 2018/19. 
 
Sarah Johnston explained the financial performance and highlighted the 
budget that was approved together with the operation of the Transport 
services and the reserves. 
 
Mick Noone explained the key performance indicators and highlighted the 
revised outputs and priorities and the actions currently underway to improve 
the priorities. 
 
Members enquired about the further demands to be placed on the reserves 
in accordance to paragraph 4.15. 
 
John Fogarty, Director of Corporate Services informed the Committee that 
there were some outstanding legal land issues to be resolved and there was 
a degree of exposure, which could not be quantified and the financial position 
could be adversely affected in major schemes. 
 
Members enquired about the bus hub objections referred to in Priority 3, 
paragraph 3d and the cycling data in KPI 2. 
 
Mick Noone informed the Committee that he would confirm what the 
objections were and that cycling data was a real challenge to acquire as the 

Page 4



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

cycling counters were not reliable and improvements were being made to 
collecting cycling data. 
 
Members enquired about the Newton Le Willows station and where things 
were up to. 
 
Shane Fitzpatrick, Senior Head of Service Operations informed the 
Committee that Newton Le Willows would be having a “soft opening” with a 
ticket office in the first/second week of January, having had some recent 
issues. 
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted and any further 
information be provided upon request as appropriate. 
 
 

69. Multi-Operator Ticketing Scheme - Product and Pricing Update and 
Proposals  
 
The Committee considered a report from Gary Evans relating to specific 
scheme arrangements, product and price changes for all Merseytravel pre-
paid tickets and highlighted the following: - 
 

 The Merseytravel Multi-Operator Ticketing Scheme is owned by the 
Combined Authority and administered by Merseytravel; 

 It is structured as a voluntary partnership under powers granted by the 
Transport Act 2000; 

 The scheme ensures that there is a legal local ticketing offer that can 
be used on more than one operator and more than one mode in the 
interest of providing customers with affordable transport tickets; 

 All proposed increases were on average within the RPI increase of 
3.2% subject to “rounding down” rules; and 

 The report does not relate to the Solo Bus only pre-paid ticket product. 
 
The Chair commented that price increases were always a challenge and over 
the last 10 years it has increased with the rate of inflation. However, it has 
always been better value in comparison to other CA’s and cities around the 
country. 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee approves that the annual price 
recommendations for the Merseytravel Multi-Operator Ticketing Scheme 
products, to be fully implemented by the 3 January 2019 (or August 2019 for 
Term time tickets) for Trio, Railpass and Saveaway tickets as outlined in 
Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

70. Transforming Cities Fund Update  
 
The Committee considered a report from Mick Noone, Director of Integrated 
Transport that provided an update on the progress of the Transforming Cities 
Fund programme, following the first commissioning round launched in July 
2018. 
 
Mick Noone provided the Committee with an update and highlighted the 
following: - 
 

 Paragraph 1.3 made reference to the Lead Portfolio Officer for 
Transport and Air Quality, but it should correctly read “ Lead Portfolio 
Member for Transport and Air Quality; 

 The three proposals agreed for commissioning include: - 
o Funding for the launch of a smart ticketing portal and new 

ticketing media as a successor to “Walrus”; 
o Support for a new, low carbon and low emission vessel (s) to 

replace the ageing Mersey Ferries; and  
o Match funding in respect of the priority European Regional 

Development Fund Sustainable Urban Development (SUD) 
programme of green travel routes for cyclists. 

 £500k of development funding has been made available in the current 
financial year to allow Merseytravel to accelerate scheme 
development work on behalf of the Liverpool City Region and four bids 
have been received: - 

o Transforming Commuter Bus Corridors 
o A Liverpool City Region Cycle and Walking Network 
o Liverpool City Region Mass Transit Options; and 
o Hydrogen fuelling options to promote take-up of alternative 

fuels 

 Other initiatives to be explored include: - 
o A surface or underground access system linking Liverpool 

South Parkway to Liverpool John Lennon Airport. 
o The potential devolution of Merseyrail Infrastructure. 
o Introducing digital railway technology on the Merseyrail network 

to improve journey time reliability, safety and public information. 
o Urban Traffic Control Technology to improve journey time 

reliability and punctuality whilst at the same time reducing 
delays and air pollution. 

 
Members enquired if a scrappage scheme, electric charging pods and drone 
delivery could be looked at and incorporated into one of the proposed 
schemes given that electric vehicles and reducing carbon and emissions are 
being considered. 
 
Mick Noone informed the Committee that the entire purpose of report was to 
highlight the transformative nature of the proposed schemes and nothing 
should be ignored. By definition the schemes have to be transforming and 
this would be taken into account. 

Page 6



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 
Members commented that to spend £172m in four years would be difficult 
and it was not about taking decisions quickly, but rather ensuring the 
democratic processes and decision making were monitored and that the 
Committee were kept informed of the decisions either before it was made or 
after it was taken. 
 
Mick Noone informed the Committee that though delegated authority was 
being sought for the Director of Policy and Commissioning and the Lead 
Portfolio Member for Transport and Air Quality, the decisions and approval of 
schemes would only be taken by the Combined Authority. 
 
Members suggested that the schemes should be transformational, creative 
and innovative, with opportunities to alleviate any revenue implications on the 
budget. 
 
The Chair recommended that a briefing session be arranged in the New Year 
to discuss and propose schemes for the Transforming Cities Fund. 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee: - 
 
a) Notes the progress to date with the development of the first tranche of 

Transforming Cities Funding; 
 

b) Recommends to the Combined Authority at its next meeting on the 11th 
January 2019 that commissioned “calls” for the Transforming Cities 
Funding be delegated to the Director of Policy and Strategy 
Commissioning in conjunction with the lead Portfolio Member for 
Transport and Air Quality in the interests of effectiveness and efficiency;  

 
c) Agrees that further updates on future commissioning rounds and on 

emerging schemes and priorities are provided at regular intervals; and 
 

d) A Member Briefing Session be arranged in the New Year to discuss and 
propose schemes for the Transforming Cities Fund. 

 
 

71. Public Question Time  
 
The Committee received two public questions from Mr Andrew Wennell who 
was in attendance and was provided an opportunity to ask his questions to 
the Committee as follows: - 
 
Question 1 
If you are on things like DLA or PIP as it is known these days on the higher 
rate for mobility and you may have other disabilities like myself who is 
registered blind you might not be able to apply for the Mersey Tunnel 
discount because you might not always be driven in the same vehicle. This is 
not a single occurrence it happens with other locations on a similar schemes 

Page 7



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

(like Mersey Gateway bridge) where they say you can only change the 
vehicle registration on the account once every 6 months. So to me it feels like 
yes we tick all the other boxes to apply for the exemption but now yes there 
is another barrier to cross. What can both Merseytravel and Halton Council 
do in relation to this issue? 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Wennell for submitted his question and for attending 
the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be provided 
within 10 working days. 
 
Question 1 
Over the Christmas and New Year period some bus operators are running a 
Saturday bus service on Thursday 27th & Friday 28th December 2018. To 
my knowledge if you run a Saturday service the rules & regulations should go 
with it like using your concessionary travel pass all day long. Can this be 
confirmed that this is true or is it still only valid after 09:30 like during the 
normal week? 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Wennell for submitted his question and for attending 
the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be provided 
within 10 working days. 
 
 

72. Petitions and Statements  
 
Petition submitted by Councillor Steve Foulkes 
 
The Chair advised the Committee that a petition with approximately 198 
signatures has been submitted by Councillor Steve Foulkes of Wirral 
Metropolitan Council on behalf of residents in response to the comments and 
heartfelt needs of his community as follows: - 
 
“Whilst the constituents are thankful to the immediate response to the Avon 
Bus crisis the remedy still leaves them disappointed. The 492/495 still does 
not run in the evening or on a Sunday leaving large areas isolated in 
Noctorum and beyond. The design of the Estate means most of the elderly 
accommodation is the furthest away from the 437-route mentioned in 
correspondence from you. Finally Sunday is not a special day anymore in 
Retail and the care industry where many of our constituents earn their living. 
Evenings now leave them unable to engage in Leisure, Work and Social 
activities. Under the current regulations we have not even been told what the 
cost of subsidy would be to make this a viable service and that this part of the 
service was never offered for tender. We would ask you to do all in your 
power to alleviate this awful position for our Residents.” 
  
The Chair confirmed that a formal written response would be provided to the 
petitioner within 10 working days following the meeting. 
 
  

Page 8



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

73. Any Other Urgent Business Approved by the Chair  
 
There was no other urgent business. 
 

 
 
 
 

_____________________ 
                                                                                   CHAIR 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee 
 
Meeting:     10 January 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF POLICY AND STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING 
 

DEVELOPING A MAYORAL TRANSPORT PLAN 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The aim of this report is to seek the endorsement of the Transport Committee for 

the approach set out for the development of a clear, concise and updated transport 
policy statement in the form of a non-statutory Mayoral Transport Plan. 

 
1.2 The report sets out timescales for its development and for consideration by the 

Transport Committee, ahead of its proposed adoption by the Combined Authority in 
April 2019. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. It is recommended that the Transport Committee: 
 

(a) endorses the approach set out in this report for the development of a non-
statutory Mayoral Transport Plan to clearly articulate the City Region‟s vision 
and plans for transport; 
 

(b) endorses the proposed timescales for its development, with a view to the 
Transport Committee considering the draft document on 4 April  2019 ahead of 
its proposed adoption by the Combined Authority on 12 April 2019; and 
 

(c) notes that the Chair of the Transport Committee and Metro Mayor will receive 
regular briefings on the development and contents of the Mayoral Transport 
Plan. 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Combined Authority adopted its Corporate Plan in October 2018, to guide the 

activities of the Combined Authority between 2018 and 2020.   Priority 4 of the plan 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



(“A transport network that connects people, goods and business”) includes the 
following headline action:-   

 
“Produce a Mayoral Transport Plan that sets out our vision and delivery plans for 
transport; and supports our Local Industrial Strategy, Spatial Development Strategy 
and priorities for a cleaner, heathier & more inclusive LCR” 

 
3.2 The objective is to clearly articulate the LCR‟s vision for transport, to effectively 

guide the commissioning of activities, allocation of funds and the communication of 
the City Region‟s vision and priorities to stakeholders. 

 
3.3 Local Transport Plans (LTPs) form a statutory requirement under Transport Act 

2000. The duty to develop an LTP falls to the local transport authority - the 
Combined Authority in the case of the Liverpool City Region.  LTPs contain policies 
covering all forms of transport, and proposals for implementing those policies.  
Plans can be replaced and updated as authorities see fit, but being statutory 
documents a number of processes and provisions1 apply, including:-  

 

 scoping the overarching vision;  

 conducting a full evidence base review;  

 modelling baselines and options / scenarios and   

 consulting stakeholders and members of the public; and 

 undertaking statutory assessments (e.g. Habitats Directive assessment, 
Environmental Impact Assessment, Equality Impact Assessment).    

 
3.4 The City Region currently has two LTPs in force, adopted in 2011, which pre-date 

the creation of the Combined Authority in 2014.  They have effectively been “saved” 
as statements of the Combined Authority‟s transport policies.  The city region has 
two plans in force by virtue of the fact that Merseyside (via the former Merseyside 
Integrated Transport Authority) and Halton were separate local transport authorities 
prior to these powers being vested with the Combined Authority.   

 
3.5 However, following the formation of the Combined Authority, a joint strategic 

framework for transport was deemed necessary, resulting in the “Transport Plan for 
Growth” (TPfG), being developed in March 2015. This acted as a bridge between 
the two statutory LTPs and reflected changes in Government policy since 2011.  It 
also acted as a means of simplifying and communicating the LCR‟s strategic 
transport priorities, the links to other policy areas, and emphasised the important 
role our partners have to play in delivering these priorities.  However, given the 
pace of change since 2014, the “Transport Plan for Growth” needs refreshing, in 
order to reflect new changes and considerations.   

 
3.6 Allied to this is the growth in the number of the detailed thematic plans and 

strategies developed since 2014, and which are listed in the table in Appendix One.  
The rationale for the development of these specific strategies is not disputed in any 
way, but there is considered to be a strong case for summarising key messages 
from these in a single, concise volume, to aid clarity and understanding.  

                                            
1
 http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20110505104156/http://www.dft.gov.uk/adobepdf/165237/ltp-

guidance.pdf  
 

Page 12

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20110505104156/http:/www.dft.gov.uk/adobepdf/165237/ltp-guidance.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20110505104156/http:/www.dft.gov.uk/adobepdf/165237/ltp-guidance.pdf


3.7 Although the Merseyside and Halton LTPs were produced nearly eight years ago, 
they set out a long term strategy to 2024 and 2026 respectively.  The plans 
advocate a “New Mobility Culture”, where sustainable transport choices prevail, to 
provide access to new opportunities, support access to opportunity for all, and 
which reduce carbon and related emissions.  The LTPs are based on clear 
evidence from across the world that clean, accessible and healthy city regions are 
prosperous city regions and conversely, that growing car usage, congestion and 
emissions should not be seen as inevitable consequences of rising growth and 
prosperity.   

 
3.8 This vision is considered wholly relevant and consistent with the Metro Mayor‟s and 

the Combined Authority‟s inclusive growth objectives, and as such, remain valid and 
relevant as primary drivers of transport policy.  However, for the reasons set out 
above, there is considered a need to update relevant parts in response to changing 
external and local circumstances and to draw together existing policy guidance that 
is spread across different documents in different locations at present.  

 
 
4. PROPOSED NEXT STEPS 

 
4.1 As noted, there is considered to be an urgent need for an updated transport policy 

statement for the LCR.  Whilst the production of a new, single statutory Local 
Transport Plan for the LCR remains the longer term objective, this as an approach 
is not recommended for two main reasons.  

 
4.2 Firstly, it is considered that the preparation of a statutory long term transport plan 

now would pre-empt the development of the City Region‟s Local Industrial Strategy 
(LIS).  Work is now underway on developing the LIS‟s quantitative evidence base, 
which is expected to be complete by April 2019.  This will be followed by qualitative 
evidence drawn from in-depth interviews and consultation, with work on the strategy 
commencing on August 2019.  The LIS itself is anticipated to be complete by March 
2020.  As the LIS process will entail the creation of a detailed evidence base and a 
plan for inclusive growth across the City Region, it will have direct implications for 
transport need and transport demand.  Developing a statutory transport plan in light 
of LIS evidence will more effectively integrate transport policy into wider socio 
economic considerations – a longstanding ambition for government and the City 
Region alike.  

 
4.3 Secondly, it will be appreciated from 3.3 above that the process associated with the 

development of a statutory LTP is lengthy and would push the production of a plan 
well into 2020, which means that the opportunity to develop an overarching plan to 
fill an acknowledged gap is lost. 

 
4.4 For this reason, a non-statutory approach is advocated, entailing the development 

of a short, overarching plan based on the current LTP policy context, the work done 
in producing the “Transport Plan for Growth” and the recent mode specific plans 
that are summarised in Appendix One.  It would also reflect the new funding 
sources that the Combined Authority has access to (e.g. the Strategic Investment 
Fund) and also the existence of new priorities in the form of Transport for the North, 
Northern Powerhouse Rail and High Speed 2. This would have the aim of replacing 
the “Transport Plan for Growth” from 2014.  Developing a non-statutory document 

Page 13



also has the advantage of being a much speedier process, as it would not be 
subject to the processes noted above. 

 
4.5 The Mayoral Transport Plan would thus be short and based on synthesising existing 

policy, rather than seeking to develop a wholly new policy vision.  This is because 
the latter could pre-empt modelling and evidence that will flow from the LIS process 
and necessitate formal assessment and appraisal processes 

 
4.6 Looking at timescales, the proposed process is as follows:- 
 

10 January 2019  Report to Transport Committee to seek endorsement of 
proposed process and scope 

Between January 
and March 

 Development of text by Combined Authority officers with 
input from Merseytravel and local authorities.   

 This would include consideration by the Transport 
Advisory Group, 

 Engagement with the Portfolio Holder: Transport and Air 
Quality and by the Metro Mayor 

4th April  Consideration of draft document by the Transport 
Committee 

12th April  Consideration and adoption by the Combined Authority 

 
 
5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no direct implications or costs associated with the development of a 

Mayoral Transport Plan, as it will be developed utilising existing staff resources. 
 
 

6. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
6.1 Developing a non-statutory Mayoral Transport Plan will address the risk that the city 

region‟s current transport policy context is fragmented, potentially complex and 
outdated in places. 

 
 

7.      EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 7.1 There are no direct implications at this stage.  The existing LTPs have been subject 

to detailed assessment and the proposed Mayoral Transport Plan does not attempt 
to change the overall strategic direction, which has inclusive growth and equitable 
access to transport as overriding principles.  

 
 

8. PRIVATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  No implications.  The existing LTPs, transport strategies and the proposed Mayoral 

Transport Plan are, and will be, public-facing documents. 
 

Page 14



 
9. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
9.1 The development of a short, overarching Mayoral Transport Plan will aid the 

communication of the City Region‟s transport vision and its priorities in a more 
public-facing and user friendly format. 

 
 
10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 The aim of the report is to seek the Transport Committee‟s endorsement for the 

approach set out above for the development of a non-statutory Mayoral Transport 
Plan, forming an updated and concise document to bridge the City Region‟s 
statutory Local Transport Plans (LTPs).  

 
10.2 There is considered to be a pressing need for an updated transport policy statement 

for the city region.  Whilst the production of a new, single statutory Local Transport 
Plan (LTP) for the LCR remains the longer term objective, this is not recommended 
now.  This is on the basis that it would pre-empt the development of a Local 
Industrial Strategy and would be a lengthy process, based on the need for formal 
processes to be followed. 

 
10.3 In the immediate term, a non-statutory approach is advocated, entailing the 

development of a short, overarching plan based on the current LTP policy context 
and the recent issues or mode-specific plans summarised in Appendix One.  It 
would also reflect the new funding sources that the Combined Authority has access 
to, and also the existence of new priorities in the form of Transport for the North, 
Northern Powerhouse Rail and High Speed 2.  

 
10.4 This would have the aim of replacing the “Transport Plan for Growth” from March 

2015 with completion and adoption anticipated for April 2019. 
 
 

 
KIRSTY PEARCE 

Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning 
 
 
 
Contact Officer(s): 
Huw Jenkins, Lead Officer – Transport Policy, LCR Combined Authority 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix One - summary of existing transport policy framework across the LCR 
  
Background Documents:  
None 
  

Page 15



Appendix One 
Summary of Current LCR Transport Policy Context 

 
 
Name of Strategy Broad aims / messages 

Merseyside Local Transport Plan (2011) 
Halton Local Transport Plan (2011) 
 

These constitute the Combined Authority‟s statutory 
transport framework, which were adopted in 2011 as 
legal requirements.  The two plans‟ strategies remain 
extant, though the delivery plans have expired.  The 
high level objectives are to ensure that transport 
supports economic growth, but at the same time 
reducing carbon and ensuring fairness and equity.    
These are considered to be in synergy with the new, 
inclusive growth agenda 

A Transport Plan for Growth (2015)  Developed as an interim bridge between the two LTPs 
when the original LCRCA was established.  It is non-
statutory and defines its priorities as Growth, Low 
Carbon and Access to Opportunity 

Mersey Ferries Strategy (2016) 
 
 

Resetting the role of the ferries as a leisure asset, and 
to seek to put them on a more sustainable footing, 
being loss-making services.  Highlights need for new 
vessels, and challenges the need for  each  of the 
existing termini 

Bus Strategy (2016) Grow bus patronage as a flexible and sustainable 
transport mode, and improve its quality and reliability, 
currently through a Bus Alliance (Merseytravel / 
Operators / LAs working together in partnership) 

Rail Strategy (2017) Update of earlier Rail Strategy to reflect changing 
circumstances, notably the constraints upon the 
network as a result of  forecast growth in Liverpool 
City Centre and at Central Station 

Local Journeys Strategy (2017) Recognises that many journeys are short, but too 
many are made by car.  Seeks to shift this balance in 
favour of walking and cycling, linked to the need for 
infrastructure and „placemaking‟ to achieve this  

Road Safety Strategy (2017) Addresses the rising number of people killed and 
seriously injured upon our roads, through a mix of 
engineering, enforcement and educational measures 

Rights of Way Improvement Plan (2018)  
 

Seeks to provide a joined up approach to improving 
rights of way by integrating the network with other 
modes and provide a positive contribution to delivering 
the Local Journeys Strategy 

Thematic strategies in development and 
led by Merseytravel at present 
 

 Mersey Tunnels Strategy,  

 Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 

 LCR Freight and Logistics Strategy 

 

 

Page 16

https://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery/Pages/MTP.aspx
https://www3.halton.gov.uk/Pages/councildemocracy/TransportPolicy.aspx
https://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery/Documents/8375%20Plan%20for%20growth%20WEB%20FINAL.pdf
https://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/corporate-information/Documents/9768%20MT%20Ferries%20Strategy%201.8_WEB.pdf
https://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/Site%20Documents/9560%20Bus%20Strategy%20FINAL%20WEB.pdf
http://moderngov.merseytravel.uk.net/documents/s21686/Enc.%201%20for%20Updated%20Long%20term%20Rail%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery/Documents/Local%20Journeys%20Strategy-FINAL.pdf
https://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery/Documents/LCR%20Road%20Safety%20Strategy%20FINAL%20v10%20-%20July%202017.pdf
http://councillors.knowsley.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=890&MId=7119&Ver=4


LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee  
 
Meeting:     10 January 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF MERSEYTRAVEL 
 

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION ROAD SAFETY STRATEGY 2017- 2020 UPDATE 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update to members on progress made by 

the Merseyside Road Safety Partnership pursuant to casualty reduction in 
accordance with the vision set out in the Liverpool City Region Road Safety 
Strategy 2017- 2020. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that the Transport Committee notes the contents of the report 
and the Action Plan Updates presented in Appendix 1. 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 At its meeting of July 2017, the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority approved 

the Liverpool City Region Road Safety Strategy 2017- 2020. 
 

3.2 The Liverpool City Region Road Safety Strategy sets out a challenging long-term 
vision to reduce the numbers of those killed and seriously injured on the City 
Region’s roads:- 

 
A reduction in the numbers of those killed and seriously injured to fewer than 
400 by 2020, with the ultimate vision of a future where no-one is killed on 
Merseyside’s roads and the injury rate is reduced. 
 

3.3 The Liverpool City Region Road Safety Strategy was endorsed by the Police 
Commissioner and Metro Mayor.  In 2017, the PCC also consulted on her proposal 
to add a fifth, new priority for the 2017- 2021 Police and Crime Plan of 'working in 
partnership to improve road safety' and more than 89% of respondents supported 
the inclusion of this new priority.  
 

3.4 Halton Borough Council is aligned to the Cheshire Road Safety Group due to the 
geographic extent of the Cheshire Constabulary.  However, the Merseyside Road 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Safety Partnership and Cheshire Road Safety Group work collaboratively, with 
attendance at each other’s respective meetings, to ensure a synergy of approach 
and shared learning to maximise benefits for all constituent authorities of the 
Liverpool City Region.  

 
 

4. VISION PROGRESS 
 

4.1 In the calendar year of 2016, prior to adoption of the Liverpool City Region Road 
Safety Strategy, a total of 599 people were killed or seriously injured (KSI’s) on the 
roads of Merseyside.  It is of note that KSI’s had risen significantly from 511 in 2010.  

 
4.2 Following adoption of the Liverpool City Region Road Safety Strategy, the KSI’s 

reduced to 557 in the calendar year of 2017, representing a reduction of 
approximately 7%.   

 
4.3 In terms of a national comparison for overall KSI’s (per 100,000 population for the 5-

year monitoring period), Merseyside was ranked 21st of 42 police force areas in 
England and Wales during 2016 and 2017.  Thus, Merseyside represents the 
median rate of overall KSI’s.  National comparisons for thematic groups are 
provided in the appendix to this report. 

 
4.4 Preliminary data for the part-year of 2018 (January to August inclusive) indicates a 

continued reduction in KSI’s across Merseyside of approximately 13% when 
compared with the same period during 2017.  Unfortunately, at the time of this 
report, no national comparison can be provided for 2018 due to the preliminary 
nature of the data. 

 
4.5 It is therefore evident that the activities undertaken by the Merseyside Road Safety 

Partnership (in accordance with the Liverpool City Region Road Safety Strategy) 
are supporting a reduction in the number of KSI’s occurring on the roads of 
Merseyside from the 2016 baseline. 

 
4.6 However, to achieve fewer than 400 KSI’s by 2020 then a reduction of 

approximately 18% is required over the next two years (2019 and 2020) based upon 
2018 year end formula projections. 

 
4.7 Whilst this remains a challenging vision, it is considered that significant progress 

has been made following adoption of the Liverpool City Region Road Safety 
Strategy and through continued application of the Merseyside Road Safety 
Partnership’s fresh ‘evidence led’ partnership approach then the vision remains 
achievable.  This is testament to the ongoing commitment of all partners to make 
our roads a safer environment for everyone, contributing to the successful growth of 
the Liverpool City Region. 

 
4.8 However, every death or serious injury on our roads is one too many and ultimately 

it must be our continued vision that there is zero loss of life and much reduced risk 
of injury on our roads.  In 2019, it is intended to commence development of a new 
Liverpool City Region Road Safety Strategy as a successor to the current 2017- 
2020 strategy and pursuant to this vision. 
 
 

Page 18



5. CASUALTY REDUCTION ACTIVITIES 
 

5.1 As set out in the Liverpool City Region Road Safety Strategy 2017- 2020, achieving 
safer roads requires the use of various methods and measures which reduce the 
risk to persons using the road network.  The Merseyside Road Safety Partnership is 
using its available resources to target road safety interventions in the most cost 
effective way and as a cohesive whole.  Partnership working and collaboration are, 
therefore, central to this strategy and are proving to be successful.  

 
5.2 The activities of the Merseyside Road Safety Partnership are generally grouped 

under the traditional road safety 3 ‘E’s of Education, Enforcement and Engineering 
but supplemented by Innovation together with continuous Monitoring and 
Evaluation. 

 
5.3 Targeted work continues to reduce casualties amongst four specific groups of road 

users that have been identified as particular areas of concern, which are:  
 

 Adult Pedestrians (aged 26-59) 

 Pedal cyclists 

 Motorcyclists 

 Senior Road Users (age 60+) 
 

5.4 However, it is important to note that this does not exclude ongoing activity in other 
areas which continue to make positive contributions to road safety across the 
Liverpool City Region.   In particular, the theme of reducing the number of child 
pedestrian casualties remains a priority.  The appendix to this report provides 
examples of the range of activities undertaken by the Merseyside Road Safety 
Partnership during 2018. 

 
5.5 The Merseyside Road Safety Partnership welcomes all contributions to the road 

safety agenda.  In 2018, it has positively engaged with campaign groups, 
academics and behaviour intervention agencies to consider future activities.  It also 
continues to support the important activities of charitable organisations for road 
crash victims. 

 
 
6. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. Financial 
 

There are no financial implications associated with this report as the activities 
undertaken pursuant to the Merseyside Road Safety Strategy 2017-2020 are 
supported by the Merseyside Road Safety Partnership reserve together with 
cashable efficiencies from enforcement cost recovery and course delivery.  
 

6.2. Human Resources 
 
There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 

 
6.3. Physical Assets 

 
There are no physical asset implications associated with this report. 

Page 19



 
6.4. Information Technology 

 
There are no information technology implications associated with this report. 

 
 
7. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
7.1 Achieving safer roads for everyone requires the use of various methods and 

measures which reduce the risk to persons using the road network.  The 
Merseyside Road Safety Strategy 2017- 2020 focuses upon the use of evidence for 
the prevention of serious injury and death at point of conflict; the essence of 
‘casualty reduction’ and therefore provides risk mitigation, contributing to the 
successful growth of the Liverpool City Region. 

 
 
8. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. In seeking to make roads a safer environment for everyone, the Merseyside Road 

Safety Strategy has positive equality and diversity implications for all of the 
protected characteristics.  Equality and diversity implications will continue to be 
considered and formally documented on a case-by-case basis for each individual 
action, intervention, project or scheme that is undertaken as part of the Merseyside 
Road Safety Strategy. 

 
 
9. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
9.1. The Merseyside Road Safety Partnership recognises that communication is a key 

overarching delivery component of its strategy.  In 2018, a full branding exercise 
has been facilitated and a new website is scheduled for development early in 2019.  
These activities will maximise ongoing communication and engagement 
opportunities with the public, road users and stakeholders. 

 
 
10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 The Merseyside Road Safety Partnership is striving to make our roads a safer 

environment for everyone, contributing to the successful growth of the Liverpool City 
Region.  Significant progress has been made following adoption of the Liverpool 
City Region Road Safety Strategy and through continued application of the 
Merseyside Road Safety Partnership’s fresh ‘evidence led’ partnership approach 
then the vision remains achievable.  This is testament to the ongoing commitment of 
all partners to make our roads a safer environment for everyone, contributing to the 
successful growth of the Liverpool City Region.  However, every death or serious 
injury on our roads is one too many and ultimately it must be our continued vision 
that there is zero loss of life and much reduced risk of injury on our roads.  
 

 
 

 
 

Page 20



FRANK ROGERS 
Director General 

 
 

Contact Officer(s): 
Mick Noone, Director of Integrated Transport, Merseytravel, 0151 330 1081 
Susan McTaggart MBE, Chair of the Merseyside Road Safety Partnership, 0151 777 1952 
Sean Traynor, Deputy Chair of the Merseyside Road Safety Partnership, 0151 443 2699   
Liz Storey, Corporate Communications Manager, Merseytravel, 0151 330 1151 
 
Appendices: 
Action Plan Updates 2018 
 
Background Documents: 
There are no unpublished background documents associated with this report  
 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee  
 
Meeting:     10 January 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF INTEGRATED TRANSPORT 
 

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION SMART TICKETING PROGRAMME - UPDATE 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 This report is to update Members on the current development of the Liverpool City 

Region Smart Ticketing Platform, including recent progress and future 
developments. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that the Transport Committee notes the contents of this report. 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1. Merseytravel has one of the most active smart ticketing schemes in the UK with 

over 330,000 concessionary travel cards in circulation with customers making over 
40 million concessionary journeys per annum on smart. Merseytravel has built upon 
the smart ticketing platform established for concessionary travel and launched a 
series of smart tickets under the Walrus brand. SaveAway, our off-peak day-ticket 
for Bus, Rail and Ferry was launched in November 2014 with Solo, our multi-
operator Bus season ticket launched in March 2016. The Walrus brand and 
underlying technology platform was also utilised to launch Arriva and Stagecoach 
single operator Week tickets in January 2017.  

 
3.2. Since November 2014 we have sold over £30 million of smart SaveAway and Solo 

tickets and issued over 800,000 Walrus cards. The Walrus platform is now firmly 
established as the single smart card for our region with Arriva, Stagecoach and now 
Merseyrail Electrics selling smart tickets onto the Walrus card.  

 
3.3. The smart ticketing programme since 2014 has seen the transfer of traditional 

paper-based ticketing such as SaveAway, Solo and RailPass onto the Walrus smart 
ticketing platform under our strategy to ‘simplify, rationalise and digitise’ our existing 
ticketing products. Although we have made good progress to date this approach is 
now in need of updating to better address the needs of customers and of the City 
Region.  

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 
3.4. The vision of the Metro Mayor is to make access to public transport more 

streamlined and customer-friendly by remodelling the current Walrus card and 
brand to make the City Region a UK exemplar for smart ticketing and new payment 
technologies. Merseytravel are now undertaking a fundamental review of ticketing 
and the underlying smart and payment technologies deployed across the region to 
realise the vision of the Metro Mayor. 

 
3.5. The works now underway will put in place the infrastructure necessary for the City 

Region to introduce contactless payment technologies across the bus and rail 
network. The City Region will engage with transport operators to improve the 
ticketing offer to customers including investigations into achieving price capping, 
initially across single operator services but ultimately leading to a multi-operator and 
multi-modal fair price promise under TfN’s Project ABBOT account-based ticketing 
system when that comes on stream. 

 
 
4. UPDATES SINCE LAST REPORT 
 
4.1. Smart Ticketing funding for the 2018/2019 financial year is in place with works 

underway on developing the underlying technology needed for a modern smart 
ticketing platform. A new IT team structure was approved in July 2018 with 
additional staffing resources dedicated to the new smart ticketing programme.  

 
4.2. The Apprentice Ticket went live on the 26 November 2018 allowing apprentices 

aged 19 to 24 access to a 50% discount on Solo Weekly and Four Weekly 
products. Applications for the apprentice card are processed at a Merseytravel 
Travel Centre where a personalised smartcard is produced. Apprentices can then 
purchase discounted travel on bus from a Travel Centre or any PayPoint outlet 
across the Liverpool City Region. 

 
4.3. A live trial of the new RailPass smart ticket was launched on 18th December from 3 

Merseyrail Stations. RailPass customers can purchase a Smart Weekly RailPass 
from the three stations involved for travel across the Merseyrail network. In addition, 
it is planned to sell smart RailPass from St. Helens Central on the City Line from 
late January 2019 subject to Northern Rail updating the ticket office retail system. 
Subject to a successful trial during January the intention is to roll out to all 
Merseyrail stations in early 2019. 

 
4.4. Work is continuing with colleagues in Merseyrail and TfN with a view to 

implementing rail Platform validators (PVals) across all non-gated Merseyrail 
Electrics stations by the end of 2019. The new PVals will be capable of processing 
taps from both an ITSO smart card and a contactless bank card when the system is 
fully operational. Once the PVals are fully operational a decision will be taken 
regarding the implementation of contactless bank card usage for travel on the MEL 
network in 2020 as part of TfN’s Project ABBOT. 

 
4.5. A project has now started to refresh the bus Electronic Ticket Machines (ETM) 

leased to smaller bus operators by Merseytravel. This initiative will align smaller bus 
operator capability with that of Arriva and Stagecoach who are already well 
advanced with modern ETM and contactless payment technology.  The new ETM 
estate leasing contract will enable wide ranging improvements to smart ticketing, 

Page 24



RTI and supported bus service management as well as enabling the introduction of 
contactless bank card usage across the City Region bus fleet. Once the ETMs are 
fully operational a decision will be taken regarding the implementation of 
contactless bank card usage for travel on the bus network in 2019. 

 
4.6. Work has now re-started on a refreshed concept for the Web Portal which is 

planned for go-live in Summer 2019 with the sale of Solo tickets on-line for pick up 
automatically on-bus. Subsequent phases will see an extension of the product set 
for sale on-line with additional facilities planned for concessionary customers. The 
intention is to introduce Combined Authority and Metro Mayor branding to smart 
ticketing when we re-launch the web portal in Summer 2019, reflecting devolution of 
transport powers. 

 
4.7. The Strategic Outline Business Case for investment in smart ticketing under 

Transforming Cities Fund was submitted in November 2018. 
 
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. Financial 

 
(a) The capital and revenue funding for the Smart Ticketing Programme is in 

place for 2018/19. Capital and Revenue budget estimates for the programme 
2019 – 2022 have been included in the Strategic Outline Case submitted for 
TCF. 

(b) Grant funding has been secured from TfN for the introduction of RailPass but 
further work is required to agree the funding for the implementation of 
Platform Validators under TfN’s ‘ITSO on Rail’ workstream. 

 
5.2. Human Resources 
 

Although the Smart Ticketing Programme is extremely demanding upon the 
available staff resources there are not considered to be any Human Resource 
issues for the current programme. 

 
 
6.  RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
 There are no direct risks from this report, which is for information only. 
 
 
7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no direct equality and diversity implications associated with this report.  

This is an update report on the implementation of previously reviewed and agreed 
decisions where an appropriate equality and diversity assessment has been 
undertaken. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



8. PRIVACY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no direct privacy implications from this report, which is for information 
only. 

 
 
9. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
9.1. There are no communication issues associated with this report. 
 
9.2. Any relevant marketing and communications for each of the deliverables of the 

programme are dealt with within the Walrus Development Programme. 
 
 
10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1. Good progress is now being made towards the further development of the Liverpool 

City Region Smart Ticketing Platform to ensure that it continues to be THE public 
transport smartcard for the region, regardless of mode or operator. 

 
 

MICK NOONE 
DIRECTOR OF INTEGRATED TRANSPORT 

 
 
Contact Officer(s): 
Paul Hart, Deputy Head of IT, Merseytravel, 0151 330 1133 
Joanna Sawyer, Corporate Communications Manager, Merseytravel, 0151 330 1129 
 
Appendices: 
None 
 
Background Documents:  
None 

Page 26



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:      The Chair and Members of the Transport Committee 
  
Meeting:     10 January 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF MERSEYTRAVEL  
 

WILLIAMS RAIL REVIEW 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report describes the ‘Williams Rail Review’ and advises that proposed 
responses to it are being collated. It also requests that delegated authority be given 
to approve the final response to the ‘Call for Evidence’ on behalf of the Combined 
Authority. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that the Transport Committee: 
 

(a) note the content of the report; and 
 
(b)  delegate authority to submit the final City Region consultation response to the 

Director of Integrated Transport and the Director of Policy and Strategic 
Commissioning, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Transport 
Committee.  

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Government’s vision is to have a world-class railway, working as part of the 

wider transport network and delivering new opportunities across the nation. The Rail 
Review was established by the Secretary of State for Transport to recommend the 
most appropriate organisational and commercial frameworks to support the delivery 
of the Government’s vision. 

 
3.2 The review is led by independent Chair Keith Williams, the former Chairman and 

Chief Executive of British Airways. The review’s findings and recommendations will 
be published in a Government White Paper in autumn 2019, with reform of the sector 
to begin in 2020. 

 
3.3 The ‘Call for Evidence’ was launched on 6th December 2018, with a submission 

deadline of 18th January 2019.  

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



3.4 The scope of the review includes: 
 

(a) commercial models for the provision of rail services prioritising the interests of 
passengers and taxpayers; 

(b) rail industry structures that promote clear accountability and effective joint 
working for both passengers and the freight sector; 

(c) a system that is financially sustainable and able to address long-term cost 
pressures; 

(d) a railway that is able to offer good value fares for passengers, while keeping 
costs down for taxpayers; 

(e) improved industrial relations, to reduce disruption and improve reliability for 
passengers; and 

(f) a rail sector with the agility to respond to future challenges and opportunities. 
 
3.5 The following topics are not being considered by the review and the call for evidence: 
 
 (a) public investment decisions made through existing franchise agreements; 
 (b) railway funding 2019-2024 commitments (Control Period 6); 
 (c) High Speed 2 and other major projects; and 
 (d) spending decisions made through the Spending Review 2019. 
 
3.6 The evidence supplied to the Review will be used to inform the review’s 

recommendations, the White Paper and the approach to implementation. 
 
3.7 Combined Authority officers have commenced informal engagement with the Review 

panel, but the main pillar of the Combined Authority’s input to the Review will be the 
written evidence. 

 
3.8 Officers have commenced compiling the written evidence to inform the review, and 

will share initial thoughts with the Director of Integrated Transport when a first draft is 
ready. Officers will also be discussing the review with the Chair of the Transport 
Committee as part of the evidence gathering process. 

 
 
4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 

This paper does not have any direct resource implications at this time. 
 
4.1. Financial 
 

None 
 
4.2. Human Resources 
 
  None 
 
4.3. Physical Assets 
 

None 
 
4.4. Information Technology 
 

Page 28



None 
 
4.5     Programme Management Office (PMO) 
 

None 
 
 
5. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 

The course of action suggested in this paper provides mitigation against the risk that 
a full, evidenced response cannot be submitted to the review by the Combined 
Authority within the timescales outlined above. 

 
 
6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no direct negative equality and diversity implications arising from the 
recommendations set out in this paper. 
 
 

7. PRIVACY IMPLICATIONS 
 

This report has no privacy implications. 
 
 
8. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
  This report and its recommendations have no direct significant impact on 

stakeholders. 
 
 
9. CONCLUSION 
 
  It is imperative that the Williams Rail Review understands the aims and objectives of 

the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority.  The Review is intended to provide 
transformational outcomes for the rail industry, which the Combined Authority has the 
opportunity to shape and inform through an evidence based and thorough 
submission, responding to the core scope of the review. 

 
 

MICK NOONE 
Director of Integrated Transport 

 
Contact Officer(s): 
Wayne Menzies Head of Rail Services.  Ext 1245 
Liz Storey, Corporate Communications Manager.  Ext 1430 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix One – Key Points to inform Williams Rail Review submission (to follow) 
 
Background Documents:  
None 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Developing a Mayoral Transport Plan
	5 Merseyside Road Safety Partnership and Liverpool City Region Road Safety Strategy 2017-20
	6 Liverpool City Region Smart Ticketing Programme Update
	7 Williams Rail Review

